
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

City Hall, G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers 
Monday, November 16, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held November 2, 2020 
• Executive Session held November 2, 2020 

b. Approve FY 2021 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) 
 

8. Employee Recognition 
 
      PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ANX C2100043 and  ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties LLC and B & K Turner Family LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 74.865 acre tract known as a portion of TMP 
090 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR 
(Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family 
Residential).  Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 14, 2020 and November 9, 
2020.  City Council on November 16, 2020.  City Council for a decision on December 7, 2020.  
Postponed from September 14, 2020 until November 9, 2020 

 

BUSINESS         

      WORK SESSION 
 

      STAFF REPORTS 
 

10. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
11. Hayden Wiggins, Finance Administrator 

            

          EXECUTIVE SESSION IF NEEDED:  Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or 
Personnel 

 

          ADJOURNMENT   
 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is December 7, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting.
  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/16/2020     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held November 2, 2020 
• Executive Session held November 2, 2020 

b. Approve FY 2021 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) 
       

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/16/2020      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 2, 2020 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD NOVEMBER 2, 2020 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 2, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Stephen Tolson, City Attorney Paul Mitchell, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard and 
Planning Director David Picklesimer.  

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Tolson. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Mike Eason reminded everyone to vote tomorrow.  Moonshine 
Festival was a success last weekend for vendors and visitors. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by S. Tolson; 
second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  No comments from the public.   

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b) made 
by S. Tolson; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held October 19, 2020 
• Executive Session held October 19, 2020 

b. Approve 2021 Meeting Calendar (Exhibit “A”) 
 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  Mayor and Council recognized Trampas Hansard for completing 
the Level 3 Code Enforcement Officer Leadership and Management Certificate Program and 
presented him with a plaque.  

 

BUSINESS 
 

9. DAWSON COUNTY FIRE/EMS OVERVIEW – PRESENTED BY FIRE CHIEF DANNY 
THOMPSON:  Fire Chief Danny Thompson provided an overview of the Dawson County Fire and 
Emergency Services including staffing, ISO ratings and its impact, growth within the County  and 
its cost impact on Fire and EMS services. 
 

10. BID SELECTION – CONSTRUCTION AND REPAINTING OF BURT’S CROSSING ELEVATED 
TANK:  Motion to award the bid to Southeastern Tank & Tower, Inc. in the amount of $192,000.00 
to be paid out of the FY 2021 Enterprise fund made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “B”) 

 

11. APPOINTMENTS:  Motion to approve the following appointments: 
 

• Angie Smith to the Historic Preservation Commission: 12/01/2020 – 11/30/2023 
• Sarah Carte to the Historic Preservation Commission: 12/01/2020 – 11/30/2023 
• Sue Theisen to the Planning Commission Post #3:       01/01/2021 – 12/31/2023 
• Anna Tobolski to the Planning Commission Post #4:    01/01/2021 – 12/31-2023  

 

                  Made by C. Phillips; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
 

                At 5:31 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for personnel and 
potential litigation was made by S. Tolson; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

 At 6:25 p.m. a motion to close executive session and resume regular session was made by S. 
Tolson; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 6:27 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, November 2, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
    
   ___________________________________ 
   Stephen Tolson, Councilmember Post 2 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
 
 
 
Attested: ________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 





 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

2021 Meetings of the City of Dawsonville  
The City of Dawsonville City Council, DDA, Planning Commission and 

HPC shall conduct regular meetings on the dates and time below: 
 

2021 City Council Regular Meetings at 5:00 pm 
JAN 4     FEB 1     MAR 1     MAY 3     JUN 7 

     AUG 2     OCT 4     NOV 1     DEC 6 

2021 City Council Regular Meetings and Work Sessions at 5:00 pm 
   FEB 15   MAR 15   APR 19    MAY 17   JUN 21 

JUL 19   AUG 16   SEP 20    OCT 18    NOV 15   DEC 20 

2021 Planning Commission Meetings at 5:30 pm 
JAN 11   FEB 8   MAR 8   APR 12   MAY 10   JUN 14 
JUL 12   AUG 9   SEP 13    OCT 11    NOV 8   DEC 13 

2021 Historic Preservation Commission Meetings at 5:30 pm 
FEB 22   APR 26    JUN 28    AUG 23    OCT 25     DEC 14 

2021 Downtown Development Authority Meetings at 5:30 pm 

JAN 25   MAR 22    MAY 24    JUL 26    SEP 27     NOV 22 

All meetings according to the dates set forth above will be upstairs in the G.L. 
“Pete” Gilleland Council Chambers at City Hall located at 415 HWY 53 E, 

Dawsonville, GA. The public is invited to attend all of these meetings. 
 

Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    2021 LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/16/2020     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE FY 2021 LMIG APPLICATION TO MILL, PAVE AND STRIPE MEMORY 
LANE, TO APPROVE THE 30% MATCH OF $9,854.92 AND TO ROLLOVER THE FUNDS INTO FY 2022 
TO COMBINE TWO YEARS OF LMIG FUNDING TO HELP PAY FOR THIS PROJECT 

 
  
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• FY 2021 LMIG FUNDING, INCLUDING 30% MATCH IS $42,704.64 
 

• TOTAL PROJECT COST AS ESTIMATED BY TURNIPSEED ENGINEERS WILL BE 
APPROXIMATELY $144,000 
 

• 30% OF $9,854.92 IS BUDGETED IN THE FY2021 ROADS BUDGET 
 
 

 

     OPTIONS: 
           
   APPROVE, AMEND OR DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

      
 

REQUESTED BY: Trampas Hansard, Public Works Director 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 





FY _________ LMIG PROJECT LIST           COUNTY / CITY ___________________________

Road Name Beginning Ending Length 
(Miles)

Description of Work Project Cost Project Let 
Date



Revised 6/1/2020

Page 1

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL 
MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)

APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20___
TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY. ALL SECTIONSMUST BE COMPLETED.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INFORMATION

Date of Application: 

Name of local government:
Address:
Contact Person and Title:
Contact Person s Phone Number:
Contact Person s Fax Number:
Contact Person s Email:

Is the Priority List attached?

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION

I,                                                                           (Name), the                                                             (Title), on behalf of
(Local Government), who being duly sworn do swear that the information given 

herein is true to the best of his/her knowledge and belief. Local Government swears and certifies that it has read and
understands the LMIG General Guidelines and Rules and that it has complied with and will comply with the same.

Local government further swears and certifies that it has read and understands the regulations for the Georgia Planning 
Act of 1989 (O.C.G.A. § 45-12-200, et seq.), Service Delivery Strategy Act (O.C.G.A. § 36-70-20, et seq.), and the Local 
Government Budgets and Audits Act (O.C.G.A. 36-81-7 et seq.) and will comply in full with said provisions. Local
government further swears and certifies that the roads or sections of roads described and shown on the local government s
Project List are dedicated public roads and are part of the Public Road System in said county/city. Local government 
further swears and certifies that it complied with federal and/or state environmental protection laws and at the completion of
the project(s), it met the match requirements as stated in the Transportation Investment ACT (TIA).

Further, the local government shall be responsible for any claim, damage, loss or expense that is attributable to negligent acts,
errors, or omissions related to the designs, drawings, specifications, work and other services furnished by or on behalf
of the local government pursuant to this Application ( ss ). To the extent provided by law, the local government further
agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the DEPARTMENT and the State of Georgia from all suits or claims that may arise
from said Loss.



Revised 6/1/2020

Page 2

GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL 
MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)

APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 20___

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION

If the local government fails to comply with these General Guidelines and Rules, or fails to comply with its Application and
Certification, or fails to cooperate with the auditor(s) or fails to maintain and retain sufficient records, the DEPARTMENT
may, at its discretion, prohibit the local government from participating in the LMIG program in the future and may pursue any
available legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the LMIG funds. Furthermore, if in the estimation of the DEPARTMENT,
a roadway or bridge shows evidence of failure(s) due to poor workmanship, the use of substandard materials, or the
failure to follow the required design and construction guidelines as set forth herein, the Department may pursue any available
legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the allocated LMIG funds or prohibit local government from participating in the 
LMIG program until such time as corrections are made to address the deficiencies or reimbursement is made. All projects 

ons of 
Transportation Systems (Current Edition), Supplemental Specifications (Current Edition), and Special Provisions.

Local Government:
E-Verify Number

(Signature) Sworn to and subscribed before me,

(Print) This day of , 20 .

Mayor / Commission Chairperson

In the presence of:
(Date)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SEAL:
NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

NOTARY SEAL: 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/16/2020     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE GARY BARR FOR 30 YEARS OF SERVICE AND ON HIS RETIREMENT 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     8     
 

 

 





























































































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/16/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     10     
 

 

 



1 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – NOVEMBER 16, 2020 

Major Water Leak: At 705 AM on Saturday, October 17th utility staff awoke to an alert from SCADA that the 
Wallace Park water tank was low indicating a major problem. The entire Utility Department, and the City Manager 
rushed to begin looking for a major leak 

The leak was located inside the pumphouse at well #110. Well #110 (Pigeon Creek) is the one in which we just 
updated the filter system. It appears a union at a cut off valve ruptured, causing the massive leak. The filter media 
and some of the electronics were damaged. This will be warranty work. Ad Edge and Cheek Brothers will be 
responsible for all the repairs. In addition to the warranty work. We are installing a surge valve at that location. 

The tank at one point got down to 22.7’. We prefer the tank to never get below 25.5’. There were no reported 
incidents of low pressure. Well #111 was cut on and the water level of the Tank #1 at Wallace Park was back to 
25.5 Saturday evening and 26.8 Sunday evening. Well #110 would not have alerted SCADA because it was running. 
SCADA will advise when the tank is filled again. The Utilities Team did a good job ascertaining the problem and 
mitigating it.  

Ribbon Cutting & Unveiling of Thunder Road: On Friday, October 23rd, we hosted a ribbon cutting and unveiling of 
Thunder Road. After much work by Mayor Eason and Representative Kevin Tanner, Hwy 9 has been renamed 
Thunder Road in honor of its place in the history of moonshine transport. A major route for taking ‘shine’ to 
Atlanta from Dawsonville, this section of road even had a movie named after it. The Chamber of Commerce did a 
good job hosting this event. GDOT Commissioner Russell McMurry and Representative Kevin Tanner along with 
Mayor Eason spoke to a good group gathered for the event. 

Moonshine Festival: Most people we interacted with were very pleased with this year’s festival. Gordon Pirkle told 
me Sunday, “I’ve been going to festivals for over 50 years and this one was the best ever.” K4K did a good job with 
clean-up and staff will follow-up with some pressure washing of certain areas. This is our first, large-scale event in 
Main Street Park and the grass and other infrastructure held up well. One thing that must be mentioned is the 
level of service provided by our personnel during the festival. Jon Davis, Cody Mason, Clay Moss and Steven 
McNeal did a superb job throughout the festival. 

The festival, in its new home, received great reviews from visitors and vendors alike. Utilizing Main Street Park, the 
City Hall complex, and Allen Street, vendors socially distant, offered a variety of wares for sale. Attendance, despite 
rain Saturday night and Sunday morning, was very good. Highway 53 and the downtown area remained open and 
business owners were pleased with the opportunity to do regular business. Stores managers were pleased with the 
festival and thankful that they could operate, making statements such as, ‘it was nice to be open for a change and 
able to do a normal business’, and ‘we were finally able to sell gas the busiest weekend of the year’. These and 
many other favorable comments were heard. Both the Fire/EMS Department and Sheriff’s Office were pleased as 
well. As with any event, improvements can be made. Of special concern is the problems Food Lion customers were 
experiencing. K4K is to be commended for the fine job they did.  

Hurricane Zeta: Just days after a successful Moonshine Festival, staff prepared for and responded to Hurricane 
Zeta. The storm struck overnight Wednesday and into the early morning hours on Thursday. Severe damage 
including downed trees on powerlines and shattered power poles. Over 80% of the county was without power. 
Sawnee, Amicalola EMC companies, GA Power and back up companies from across the southeast are working 
around the clock to restore power. At one point, Glennis Barnes with GA Power said they had over 500,000 people 
out of power. Power first went out in Crown Point and Gold Creek about 5 AM and then the remainder of town by 
530 AM. We were told 700 broken poles had to be replaced. 
 
Despite torrential rainfall, flooding was a non-issue. The work at Jack Heard Street resolved that problem as did the 
repairs to the road off Flat Creek accessing our maintenance facility. 



2 
 

 
Roads that were closed due to downed power lines caused by trees include:  portions  of Shoal Creek, Burt Creek, 
Perimeter Road, Hwy 9 N, Hwy 136, and Hwy 183. According to the county, numerous side and rural roads are in 
bad shape, some from flooding but most from downed trees. GDOT also worked for days to clear and reopen state 
highways, Hwy 9 was especially hard hit. 
 
Initially we closed City Hall for two hours on Thursday but extended it to all day because power had not been 
restored, nor had internet and numerous roads across the county were closed. We reopened City Hall Friday after 
a two-hour delay. 
 
Public Works and Utilities Crews initially worked 20 consecutive hours on Thursday and over 12-16 hours on Friday. 
SCADA was knocked out due to power failure but was back up Thursday. The water tanks are holding and wells 
#111 and 106 are pumping on generator; so, we are good. 
 
The sewer lift stations were on generator. We had Townley pump Gold Creek, Goodson’s and Flat Creek Lift 
stations to give us a head start. The ponds were pumped down the preceding two days prior the storm and were 
able to handle the heavy rainfall.  
 
Clean-up of trees continued into the next week as power lines are made safe. Additionally, we continue the 
general clean-up of gutters and culverts that are now full of debris. 
 
Major Water Leak #2: About 6 PM on Sunday night after Hurricane Zeta, staff responded to a major water leak on 
Shoal Creek Road. The 8” main line that feeds Bent Ridge and Pigeon Creek was broken we believe due to a tree 
uprooted from the storm . A boil alert was issued for the areas impacted and staff worked diligently with Townley 
Construction to get the leak repaired. The leak was repaired by 9 PM and staff worked until 2 AM flushing lines. 
 

Chase Celebration: The city played host to a ceremony recognizing Hometown Hero Chase Elliott after he won the 
NASCAR 2020 Championship. NASCAR’s most popular driver was escorted through downtown finishing up at the 
GRHOF Winner’s Circle for a ceremony recognizing him, his crew and family for this outstanding achievement. City 
Councilmembers Tolson, Phillips and Walden presented him a Key to the City. Huge crowds greeted and showed 
their support for Chase as people came from across the southeast to get a glimpse of the Champion and 
participate in this celebration.  

Veteran’s Day Parade & Celebration: The City of Dawsonville is proud and appreciative of our Veterans who 
served our nation, preserving our democracy and protecting our great nation. In year’s past, the city has supported 
a Veteran’s Day Parade that was sponsored and coordinated by the Veteran’s Affairs of Dawson County. This year, 
the Veteran’s Affair of Dawson County chose to cancel all activities normally associated with Veteran’s Day, 
November 11th. According to current Veteran’s Affairs of Dawson County President Don Brown, “We are respecting 
the health and well-being of our citizens and our Veterans by cancelling the luncheon and parade.”  

COVID-19 Update: City Hall remains open despite the worrisome increases in COVID cases. We continue to 
maintain our pandemic protocols as we try to keep our staff and customers safe and healthy 

Farmer’s Market: A special concrete epoxy to fill the surface cracks in the 14” slab has been received. It will be 
used to fill and seal all cracks to keep moisture out. We have also received a coating that will be applied to the 
total surface that while allowing the concrete to breath while creating a safer surface for foot traffic preventing 
slipping when floor is wet. We need a break in activity and a few days of dry weather to apply these products. 

Everlast & the Main Street Park Rest Room: The project was closed out just in time for the Moonshine Festival 
Although K4K chose not to utilize the facility during the festival, we are hearing great things from daily visitors to 
Main Street Park. Attendance this fall to the park has been incredible with cooler temperatures. 



3 
 

Main Street Park: The fencing for the dog park is complete and we are working with our Eagle Scout candidate to 
develop signs and other amenities for this addition. We continue to work  with the other two Eagle Scout 
candidates. We are working with legal on an IGA with the county that will allow design and construction of a trail 
to the library by one candidate. We are working with the other candidate to design of a Lending Library geared 
specifically for young children. Additionally, staff are seeking bids on construction of picnic shelters in the park as 
well as disc golf, and exercise stations.  

Test Manhole Project at Gold Creek Foods: Townley Construction advised that on November 2nd they received 
word that the manhole should be delivered within two weeks. The sampler has already been received and is ready 
for installation in the manhole once it is delivered and in place.  

Paving Repairs - Main Street, Memory Lane and Jack Heard Street: Turnipseed Engineering are finalizing a bid 
package for milling, deep patch repair and overlay for Main Street, Memory Lane, Jack Heard Street and hopefully 
Maple Street if bids are not too great. We asked Turnipseed to evaluate Jack Heard with regards to handling 
rainfall. This project is funded through SPLOST VI. 

Sidewalks: Turnipseed Engineering is also engineering sidewalks connecting Main Street Park to the Farmer’s 
Market. 

Refurbish and Painting of Burt’s Crossing Water Tower: Bids have been received and approval from the City 
Council to proceed with this $192,000 project. 

Atlanta Motorsports Park: Throughout the last two weeks in October and now two weeks into November, staff 
continue to receive calls about excessive noise. The most calls came in the first weekend in November due to the 
Legend’s Race. We are awaiting sound meter reports to determine if AMP was within compliance levels for sound. 

Mural Refurbish: The three murals on the side of the GA Racing Hall of Fame have been refurbished and look 
great.  

Budget:  As budgeted, we paid $311,161 from SPLOST VI toward the City Hall debt. This leaves about $350,000 
remaining. 

Robinson Elementary School utilizes Main Street Park Playground: As part of their PBIS rewards program for 
rewarding students for good behavior, a group of K-5th grade children were treated to a visit to our new 
playground during the school day. These “playground experts” thoroughly enjoyed our facilities and this will 
continue to be a reward for the PBIS program. 

Flu Clinic: The Department of Public Health hosted a drive-in flu clinic at the Farmer’s Market at which a number of 
folks were able to receive their flu vaccination. 

Personnel:  

• We were saddened to receive the resignation of Finance Administrator Hayden Wiggins. He just 
completed his third year of service to the city and he has done a superb job. However, he received a job 
offer for a company closer to home. The position brings a much better salary  than we could offer, equity 
in a growing company and is 10 minutes from his home. We are excited for he and his family and this 
opportunity. 

• With David Picklesimer’s promotion, this leaves a tremendous void in the Inspector position. We continue 
advertising and interviewing for the Inspector/Code Enforcement position. One candidate we very much 
liked, turned down the rate of pay offered. 

• With Stacy Harris’ transfer from downstairs to Planning & Zoning, this leaves a void in the downstairs 
operation for which we have interviewed and should be making a selection shortly. 



4 
 

• We have completed interviews for Finance Administrator and will be making an offer soon to our top 
ranked candidate.  

Employee Recognition:  

• Employee of the Month: 
 October 2020 – I normally do not recognize more than one employee each month for the 

Employee of the Month Award. However, this year was a special circumstance as we continued 
to deal with 2020 events. With that in mind, multiple employee from two departments are being 
recognized. From the Utility Department: Westin Lee and Blake Croft for response to two major 
water leaks, a hurricane and covering for Jacob Barr while he was out with two family 
emergencies. From the Public Works Department: Steven McNeal, Cody Mason, Jon Davis and 
Clay Moss for  their back-to-back response to the Moonshine Festival and Hurricane Zeta. 

• Employee of the Quarter 
 3rd Quarter (July-September) – Clay Moss 

 

Administrative Variance C2100054: Administrative variance approved by Planning Director David Picklesimer for 
2.5’ reduction in the front setback of 20’ at 324 Flowing Trail. He is available for questions. 

 

Leak Adjustments 11/10/2020 

DATE  CUSTOMER  WATER     SEWER       TOTAL DESCRIPTION 

11/02/2020 Michael Williamson $22.13     $29.64          $51.77 Main broke outside meter box 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  11/16/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

• TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2020  
 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Hayden Wiggins, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11       
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2020 - October 31, 2020

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 1,235,050$       736,420$          59.63%
      Licenses and permits 115,975            51,479              44.39%
      Intergovernmental revenues 25,000              96,060              384.24%
      Fees 269,200            44,811              16.65%
      Other 234,473            34,656              14.78%

               Total revenues 1,879,698         963,426            51.25%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 99,215              34,986              35.26%
      Mayor 21,380              6,180                28.91%
      Elections -                   -                   0.00%
      Administration 739,865            282,547            38.19%
      City Hall building 118,000            57,406              48.65%
      Animal control 1,500                132                   8.80%
      Roads 537,517            257,759            47.95%
      Parks 47,000              430,798            916.59%
      Planning and zoning 285,721            77,983              27.29%
      Economic development 29,500              4,000                13.56%

               Total expenditures 1,879,698         1,151,791         61.28%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (188,365)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 188,365            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2020 - October 31, 2020

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 680,000$        257,211$        37.83%
       Sewer fees 794,000          295,225          37.18%
       Garbage fees 203,500          72,738            35.74%
       Miscellaneous 205,310          106,020          51.64%

               Total revenues 1,882,810       731,194          38.84%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000          120,184          20.94%
        Garbage service 212,000          77,994            36.79%
        Group insurance 85,056            32,210            37.87%
        Insurance 38,200            3,110              8.14%
        Interest 87,450            16,667            19.06%
        Payroll taxes 22,752            9,213              40.49%
        Professional 98,000            68,901            70.31%
        Miscellaneous 52,500            15,873            30.23%
        Repairs/supplies 187,500          85,587            45.65%
        Retirement 17,000            7,915              46.56%
        Salaries 297,402          121,684          40.92%
        Technical services 66,000            31,679            48.00%
        Utilities 144,950          43,377            29.93%

               Total expenditures 1,882,810       634,394          33.69%

INCOME (LOSS) 96,800            



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST 

July 1, 2020 - October 31, 2020

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,062,750         533,691            50.22%
       Interest 2,000                179                   8.95%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 1,064,750         533,870            50.14%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition 680,000            39,483              5.81%
       Roads and sidewalks 375,750            74,733              19.89%
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                3,000                33.33%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 1,064,750         117,216            11.01%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 416,654            

      Transfer in From Reserves -                   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 416,654            



City of Dawsonville
SPLOST VI Completion Schedule 
Inception through October 31, 2020

Current Prior Year Percent of Project
Original Project Project Current Budget Percent Project 

Project Budget Budget to Date Year Total Used Complete Description

Roads, Streets, Bridges and Sidewalks 1,250,000 1,250,000 504,739 74,733 579,472 46.36% 100.00% Maple Heights Paving Complete, Sidewalk 100%

Water and Sewer Projects 2,750,000 750,000 401,756 0 401,756 53.57% 54.00% GEFA Loan payments (well#111,water meters, well#110)

Park and Recreation Facilities 2,250,000 2,250,000 2,372,407 0 2,372,407 105.44% 115.00% Phase I complete, Phase II pending completion of restroom

Farmers Market Facility 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,071,402 3,000 1,074,402 107.44% 100.00% Project Complete

Public Works Facility and Equipment 400,000 400,000 284,559 0 284,559 71.14% 100.00% Funding saved went towards MSP

City Hall Acquistition 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,346,856 39,483 1,386,339 69.32% 67.00% We have paid more down as funding allowed

Total 9,650,000$         7,650,000$         5,981,719$         117,216$            6,098,935$         79.72%

MSP Recap

Total Through 10/31/20 2,372,407

Street Lighting for MSP 119,275
MSP Amphitheater Design 8,000
MSP Fencing 119,932
MSP Restroom 352,925
MSP Landscaping 168,137

Total MSP Expenditures 3,140,676$         


	1. 11.16.2020 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 11.02.2020 Minutes Draft w. Exhibits
	11.02.2020 MINUTES.draft.pdf
	11.02.2020 ES Affidavit.pdf
	2021 Meeting Calendar Notice.pdf
	11.02.2020 Resolution_Contract Award to Southeastern Tank and Tower.pdf

	7b. 2 07.22.2020_FY2021 Formula Amount Ltr.
	7b. 3 Blank LMIG PROJECT LIST with form fields 6-22-20
	7b. 4 LMIG application
	8. Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. anx and za public hearing
	20201110160623872.pdf

	10. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	10. 2 11102020 City Manager's Report
	11. 2 General Fund Thru 10-31-20
	11. 3 WSG Fund Thru 10-31-20
	11. 4 SPLOST Fund Thru 10-31-20
	11. 5 SPLOST Percent Complete 10-31-20

	FY: 2021
	COUNTY  CITY: City of Dawsonville
	Road NameRow1: Memory Lane
	BeginningRow1: Main Street
	EndingRow1: Allen Street
	Length MilesRow1: 2,234 FT
	Description of WorkRow1: Mill, pave and stripe 
	Project CostRow1: approx. $144,000.00
	Project Let DateRow1: on or aboutJuly 2021
	Road NameRow2: 
	BeginningRow2: 
	EndingRow2: 
	Length MilesRow2: 
	Description of WorkRow2: 
	Project CostRow2: 
	Project Let DateRow2: 
	Road NameRow3: 
	BeginningRow3: 
	EndingRow3: 
	Length MilesRow3: 
	Description of WorkRow3: 
	Project CostRow3: 
	Project Let DateRow3: 
	Road NameRow4: 
	BeginningRow4: 
	EndingRow4: 
	Length MilesRow4: 
	Description of WorkRow4: 
	Project CostRow4: 
	Project Let DateRow4: 
	Road NameRow5: 
	BeginningRow5: 
	EndingRow5: 
	Length MilesRow5: 
	Description of WorkRow5: 
	Project CostRow5: 
	Project Let DateRow5: 
	Road NameRow6: 
	BeginningRow6: 
	EndingRow6: 
	Length MilesRow6: 
	Description of WorkRow6: 
	Project CostRow6: 
	Project Let DateRow6: 
	Road NameRow7: 
	BeginningRow7: 
	EndingRow7: 
	Length MilesRow7: 
	Description of WorkRow7: 
	Project CostRow7: 
	Project Let DateRow7: 
	Road NameRow8: 
	BeginningRow8: 
	EndingRow8: 
	Length MilesRow8: 
	Description of WorkRow8: 
	Project CostRow8: 
	Project Let DateRow8: 
	Road NameRow9: 
	BeginningRow9: 
	EndingRow9: 
	Length MilesRow9: 
	Description of WorkRow9: 
	Project CostRow9: 
	Project Let DateRow9: 
	Road NameRow10: 
	BeginningRow10: 
	EndingRow10: 
	Length MilesRow10: 
	Description of WorkRow10: 
	Project CostRow10: 
	Project Let DateRow10: 


